ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
March 30, 2010
3:10 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon, Co-Chair
Representative Charisse MIlett, Co-Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Jay Ranras

Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representative Chris Tuck

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 182

"An  Act establishing the Geater Rai | bel t Energy and
Transm ssion Corporation and relating to the corporation;
relating to transition, fi nanci al pl an, and reporting
requirenents regarding planning for the initial busi ness
operations of the Geater Railbelt Energy and Transm ssion
Corporation; relating to a report on legislation regarding the
Regul atory Conmi ssion of Al aska and the Geater Railbelt Energy
and Transm ssion Corporation; authorizing the Al aska Energy
Aut hority to convey the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project and
the Alaska Intertie to the Geater Railbelt Energy and
Transm ssion Corporation; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 182

SHORT TI TLE: RAI LBELT ENERGY & TRANSM SSI ON CORP.
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 12/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 09 (H ENE, L&C, FIN

03/ 26/ 09 (H ENE AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 26/ 09 (H Heard & Hel d

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -1- March 30, 2010



03/ 26/ 09 (H) M NUTE( ENE)

04/ 09/ 09 (H) ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 09/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 09/ 09 (H) M NUTE( ENE)

03/ 18/ 10 (H ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 18/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 18/ 10 (H) M NUTE( ENE)

03/ 23/ 10 (H ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 23/ 10 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 25/ 10 (H) ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 25/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 25/ 10 (H) M NUTE( ENE)

03/ 30/ 10 (H) ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

BRI AN BJORKQUI ST, Seni or Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Labor and State Affairs Section

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the changes to HB 182.

JANET RElI SER, Board Menber

Chugach El ectric Association, Inc. (Chugach Electric)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182.

JOE GRI FFI TH, General Manager

Mat anuska El ectric Association, Inc., (MA)

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182.

KATI E HURLEY, Board Menber

Mat anuska El ectric Association, Inc. (MEA

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182.

KIT JONES, Board Menber

Mat anuska El ectric Association, Inc. (MEA

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182.

LARRY DEvILBI SS, Board Menber

Mat anuska El ectric Association, Inc. (MEA

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 2- March 30, 2010



BOB PI CKETT, Chairman

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented his personal observations during
t he hearing on HB 182.

CAI TLIN H GA NS, Executive Director

Al aska Conservation Alliance (Al liance)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 182.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:10: 21 PM

CO CHAIR CHARI SSE M LLETT called the House Special Committee on
Energy neeting to order at 3:10 p.m Present at the call to
order were Representatives MIllett, Johansen, Petersen, Tuck,
and Edgnon. Representatives Dahl strom and Ranras arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

3:10:46 PM

HB 182- RAI LBELT ENERGY & TRANSM SSI ON CORP.

3:10: 47 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 182, "An Act establishing the Geater Railbelt
Energy and Transmission Corporation and relating to the
cor porati on; relating to transition, financi al pl an, and
reporting requirenents regarding planning for the initial
busi ness operations of the Geater Railbelt Energy and
Transm ssion Corporation; relating to a report on |egislation
regarding the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska and the Geater
Rai |l belt Energy and Transm ssion Corporation; authorizing the
Al aska Energy Authority to convey the Bradl ey Lake Hydroelectric
Project and the Alaska Intertie to the Geater Railbelt Energy
and Transm ssion Corporation; and providing for an effective
date."” She stated the conmittee substitute (CS) for HB 182, 26-
GH1041\'S, Chenowet h/Bailey, 3/24/10, was the working docunent
before the commttee.

3:11:16 PM

BRI AN BJORKQUI ST, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Labor and
State Affairs Section, Departnent of Law (DOL), referred to page

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2010



3, line 16, of the proposed CS that authorized the formation of
t he corporation. He explained that this section allows four or
nmore nunicipal or cooperative public utilities, that are first
authorized by law, to form Section 13, page 21, line 17,
provides the required authorization to formthe Geater Railbelt
Energy and Transm ssion Corporation (GRETC) from four or nore of
the public wutilities listed in the bill. Subsection (b)
provides a contingency that the corporation nust agree to
conduct a managenent audit of the corporation after three, siXx,
and ten years, and provides criteria for the audit. Section 14
provides a conditional effective date for the bill and nost of
the anmendnments; under that section if the utilities provide a
letter of intent to the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA) by
7/ 30/ 10, the authorization to formthe corporation takes effect.
Also on page 3, lines 20-25, there are two initial purposes for
the formation of the corporation: (1) to acquire, operate, or
mai ntain power and transm ssion projects from the AEA, (2) to
plan for, reconmend, coordinate, and otherw se address power
generation and transmssion (G&T) needs for the service

territory of the corporation. M. Bjorkquist stated this
provision is critical and is tied to replacing sonme of the void
that will be caused by the termnation of the Al aska Intertie
Agr eenent .
3:15:38 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT asked M. Bjorkquist to explain how this
structure is different froma joint action agency (JAA).

3:15: 58 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST explained that the JAA statute pertains to
projects acquired fromthe AEA, and was enacted to assist in the
divestiture of the Four Dam Pool Power Agency project. House
Bill 182 adds the purpose of planning for the interconnected
service territory of the corporation, and has a greater public
function. For exanple, the Four Dam Pool projects were isolated
projects, and the JAA legislation focused on the acquisition of
the projects. Furthernore, a JAA can be a joint venture between
two or nore public utilities to deal with a project or projects.

3:18: 39 PM
CO-CHAIR M LLETT referred to AS 42.45.310, and pointed out that
a JAA can request revenue bonds from the Al aska |Industrial

Devel opnment & Export Agency (Al DEA). She asked for the
di fference between the purposes of a JAA and GRETC, beyond the

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -4- March 30, 2010



fact that GRETC is authorized to own fuel storage, fuel
resources, |leases, land, pipelines, and to limt the abilities
of i ndependent power producers (IPPs). She asked for the
reasons to formunder GRETC i nstead of a JAA

3:19: 51 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST clarified that GRETC l|legislation also deals with
issues such as electrically interconnected wutilities, and
obl i gates |ong-range regional planning functions-including the
integrated resource plan (IRP)-and |ong-range fuel supply,
capital inprovenent, and financial nanagenent plans. These
regional planning functions are add-ons to GRETC that are not
part of the JAA legislation or statutory schene, because the JAA
| egi sl ati on was established for isolated projects w thout a need
for regional planning. M. Bjorkquist stressed the inportance
of the regional planning conponent within GRETC

3:21:18 PM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT asked whether a JAA could adopt an IRP, and
form under a menorandum of understanding (MOU) w thout a [new
statute.

3:21: 37 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST enphasized that the provisions in HB 182 are
mandated, thus the utilities are required to conplete regiona
pl anning. Wthout HB 182, all the utilities can "elect"” to plan
on a regional basis, but historically, conprehensive planning
has not happened.

3:22:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opi ned that the |egislature, AEA, or the
governor could require an |RP. He then asked whether there is
another JAA in place in the state at this tine.

3:22:58 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST said he was not aware of another JAA operating

however, there has been interest by the Railbelt utilities to
formone in anticipation of the divestiture of Bradley Lake and
the termnation of the Al aska Intertie Agreenent.

3:23:27 PM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 5- March 30, 2010



COCHAIR M LLETT stated a JAA was forned 7/26/05 by Anchorage
Muni cipal Light & Power (M&P) and Golden Valley Electric
Association (GVEA) called the Al aska Railbelt Energy Authority
(AREA) . She expressed interest in why this JAA failed and how
GRETC will acconplish what the utilities could not do "on their
own. "

3:24: 34 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST returned to page 3, line 30, and said another
purpose of the corporation is to be the primary recipient of
state financial assistance. In other words, this is a provision

that the wutilities nust coordinate and consolidate before
Rai | belt energy funds are nmade avail abl e.

3:25: 22 PM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT surmsed that the reason to form GRETC is to
have access to the Railbelt energy funds.

3:25:34 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST said yes, and added that there is other state
financi al assistance, as well. Page 4, line 3, subsection (c),
provides for specific types of planning regarding the adequacy
of fuel supply, the adequacy of G&T assets, and diversity in
generation resources, renewable energy-based generation, and
renewabl e energy generation resources.

3:26: 24 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT asked for the neaning of "diversity in
generation resources.”

3:26:31 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST responded it neans different fuel supplies,
rat her than having all of the energy generation fromoil or gas.

3:26: 38 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST, in further response to Co-Chair Mllett,
clarified that this section is for planning and rmaking
recommendations; in fact, the diversity in generation resources
woul d be focused nore on the generating assets that would use
various types of fuels.

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2010



3:27:43 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT asked whether  Sec. 42.50. [ 090] provi des
authority for the corporation to own, nmanufacture, purchase,
acquire, accunulate, transmt, nmeter, and di spatch enerqgy.

3:28: 05 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST indicated yes. He called attention to page 4,
line 19, and said this provision clarifies that the corporation
will operate on a not-for-profit basis and will offer services
at uniform standard-not necessarily postage stanp rates-due to
the differences in the cost of providing services to various
custoners. Page 4, lines 26-27, provide that the corporation is
for a public service.

3:29: 38 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT recalled interest in the corporation's
i nterconnection policy because pronoters of renewable energy
projects are unsure of whether the standards GRETC nay adopt nmay
excl ude renewabl e projects fromthe grid.

3:30: 23 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST referred to page 18, lines 7-9, and said this
provision ensures that ot hers can participate in the
transm ssion system by giving the RCA jurisdiction over joint
use and interconnection of the facilities. Furthernore, this
provision will apply "forever”™ and enpowers the RCA to order

GRETC to allow an IPP to put power on the transm ssion system
He opined the provision denonstrates that GRETC can not close
off the Railbelt system to others. It is very clear that the
corporation is subject to this jurisdiction even after it
ot herwi se ceases to be subject to RCA regulation in 2015.

3:32: 28 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT asked for the purpose of [subsection] (g) that
provides for the corporation adopting its own interconnection
criteria.

3:32:51 PM
MR, BJORKQUI ST explained that subsection (g) allows GRETC to

establish a base of standards that can be arbitrated by the RCA
in the case of disputes.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -7- March 30, 2010



3:33: 36 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST, in further response to Co-Chair Mllett, said
currently there is one interconnection standard wthin the
Al aska Intertie Agreenent applicable throughout the Railbelt and
followed by the utilities voluntarily, or by agreenent.

3:34: 20 PM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT questioned whether the standards are approved
by the RCA

3:34: 40 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST said he was unsure. The proposed statute on
i nterconnection requires that the utilities first negotiate with
each other, and then go to the RCA in the case of inpasse. He
continued to page 5, line 2, and said it provides that the board
of directors includes two directors from each of the public
utility menbers of the corporation, and one public director
appoi nted by the governor from nom nees supplied by directors on
t he board. Also on page 5 are provisions for the operation of
t he board. Proposed Sec. 42.50.040, on page 7, line 6, is the

provision that establishes the hiring of enployees. Page 7,
line 17, is the provision that addresses nenbership. M.
Bj orkqui st pointed out the public utility menbers wll have

directors on the board, and other nenbers could include public
utilities that choose not to be public utility nenbers, or those
that do not qualify. A public utility nmenber nust be a public
utility or a cooperative.

3:36: 59 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT asked whether the chief executive officer (CEO
i s appointed fromthe board or outside of the board.

3:37: 20 PM
MR, BJORKQUI ST answered that the CEO is from outside of the
board. In further response to Co-Chair MIllett, he guessed that
there are no specific requirenents of the CEO because the
selection will be nade by the sophisticated directors of the
utilities.
3:39: 01 PM

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE - 8- March 30, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked whether the CEO can be an enpl oyee of
a non-voting nmenber utility.

3:39:43 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST said correct. He added that the CEO can not be a
director, but could be an enployee of one of the public, or
menber, utilities.

3:39:47 PM

CO CHAI R EDGVON asked whether the [CS] has been scrutinized by
tax experts as to its not-for-profit status.

3:40: 16 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST acknowl edged that this topic has not been vetted,
but it is understood by the utilities that there will be tax
I Ssues. He then noted that one change from the original bill

regarding nenbership is that nenbers can be added, or can
wi thdraw, after the initial formation of the corporation.

3:42: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked what woul d happen if half of the
menbers want to wi t hdraw.

3:42: 29 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST advised that if the criteria were net, the
menbers could wthdraw, and the consequence s that the
corporation would have fewer than the designed nunber of
menbers. In further response to Representative Dahlstrom he
rem nded the commttee that the purpose of the bill is to give
an opportunity for the Railbelt utilities to work together even
if the utilities wthdraw, and the goals of the corporation are
not net.

3:43: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM assuned that if a utility w thdraws and
it has received a benefit it would be |iable.

3:44: 23 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST referred to page 8, line 3, and pointed out that
in order for a nenber to withdraw, it mnust pay liabilities.

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE -9- March 30, 2010



Also, a public utility menber can withdraw, but remain a nenber
so it would not have to pay liabilities in a lunmp sum or
provi de for paynent. He continued to page 8, line 21, that was
the provision for articles of incorporation, and stated that
articles of incorporation are necessary to prove the existence
of the corporation to the U S. Departnment of Comrerce, and for
busi ness purposes. Page 9, line 12, provides for bylaws, and
page 9, line 22, provides for the indemification of officers
and enpl oyees. Page 9, line 25, provides for the general powers
of the corporation. He described sone of the conditions by
which the corporation may sell energy power at retail to
i ndustrial custoners.

3:47: 29 PM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT observed that the corporation wll sell power
to the utilities for distribution. She asked whet her GRETC can
sell directly to an industrial anchor.

MR, BJORKQUIST clarified that GRETC can sell power to an
i ndustrial custoner with the consent of the wutility in the
affected service area, and to industrial custonmers outside of
servi ce areas.

3:48: 28 PM

CO- CHAIR EDGVON asked, "And do this as a not-for-profit
corporation?"

3:48: 37 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST said yes. He continued to page 11, line 8, that
allows the corporation the power of emnent domain as a public
utility, except to take a G&T asset from another public utility.
3:49: 17 PM

CO-CHAIR MLLETT questioned whether emnent domain could be
exercised over a private conpany that owns a pipeline, a gas
storage facility, or a | ease.

3:49: 55 PM

MR, BIJORKQUI ST said he was wunsure and would research the
guesti on.

3:50: 33 PM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 10- March 30, 2010



CO- CHAIR M LLETT provided an exanple of GRETC exercising em nent
domain for the public good over a facility in which a private
entity has invested mllions of dollars.

3:51: 25 PM

MR, BIJORKQUI ST said this was "theoretically possible" but,
exercising emnent domain requires full paynment of value-
including the profitability of the asset-which is difficult to
ascertain.

3:52: 07 PM

COCHAIR MVLLETT further asked about eminent donmain over a
depreciated pipeline with access to a gas |ease in which GRETC
is interested.

3:52:22 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST clarified that the issue in emnent domain is the
fair market val ue, whether or not an asset has been depreci ated.

3:52:32 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT pointed out that interest in the exploration of
Cook Inlet by private industry nay be ruined by the presence of
a state-funded oil and gas conpany.

3:53:14 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST suggested that this topic nay be addressed by the
| ast set of anmendments that renove the power of exploration from
the corporation. Neverthel ess, the acquisition of fuel supply
is necessary for any utility that generates power.

3:53: 55 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted on page 12, line 9, GRETC may
create subsidiary corporations. He asked whether subsidiary

corporations are subject to the sanme conditions and powers as
t he parent corporation.

3:54:51 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST opined GRETC is limted to perform the 25 powers
of the corporation and other duties authorized by HB 182, thus

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -11- March 30, 2010



it could not expand into other areas by a subsidiary

cor porati on. The purpose of creating a subsidiary corporation
is to assist in the financing of a project. He then continued
to page 12, line 15, that addressed public utility powers and
regulation, and noted that GRETC is subject to RCA general
regulation for the first five years. In addition, the

corporation nmay not have retail sales of electric power except
to an industrial custoner with certain conditions, and it is not
required to obtain a certificate under AS 42.05.221. Thi s
section will be amended by provisions found in Sec. 7 and Sec. 8
of the [CS], that provide exenptions from regulation, regulatory
cost charge, and rate regulation in 2015. Further, Sec. 8 adds
a new subsection that nakes clear that the corporation wll
conply with principles and requirenents of the RCA as if the
corporation were a regulated public utility. M. Bjorkqui st
explained that these provisions deal wth recordkeeping and
docunenting information regardi ng rates.

3:57: 44 PM
CO- CHAIR M LLETT asked for the l|ocation of the five-year sunset.
3:57: 57 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST stated on page 23, lines 7-8 identify which
sections take effect 8/16/2015. Therefore, the exenption from
rate regulation "sunrises” in 2015. He returned to page 12, and
the sections dealing with regional planning. I n conbination,
the provisions relate to advantages to ratepayers and future
rates by regional planning for projects. Regional planning wll
provide information to the corporation and nenbers, ratepayers,

and the |egislature. Furthernore, the legislature will provide
oversight so it wll need information to evaluate funding
requests. In fact, on page 14, lines 11-14, subsection (b)
addresses the ways in which the corporation can obtain state
financing; however, the bill does not obligate the state to

provide a specific type of financial assistance, or any type of
financial assistance, and there is no limt to the "strings" the
state can inpose on financing in the form of ternms and
condi ti ons. Al though there is an expectation that the state
will provide financing, there wll be negotiations over the
terns and conditions thereof.

4:02: 08 PM

CO CHAI R EDGVON asked:

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -12- March 30, 2010



By definition, the corporation, obviously, would tie

in the subsidiary corporation ... is that sort of
unspoken?
4:02:19 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST opined a subsidiary corporation would not have
the powers of GRETC, for exanple, the ratenmaking powers. He
concluded, "So there's a limtation on what it can do and a
[imtation in the other statutory scheme as to what powers the
subsi diary coul d have."

4:03:36 PM

COCHAIR M LLETT observed that GRETC legislation does not
menti on whether AIDEA revenue bonds could be requested. She
asked why AIDEA is not a bondi ng source.

4:04: 01 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST recalled the expectation that AIDEA will finance
the sale of the Four Dam Pool Power Agency. He advised that the
use of AIDEA or AEA financing is not precluded by the lack of
| anguage in HB 182.

4:05: 04 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST returned to page 12, and said lines 25-30 refer
to an IRP and require the corporation to provide a report
explaining any deviation from an existing state plan. The
provision will provide a degree of transparency and political
accountability in that it provides pertinent information, and
also that if GRETC deviates from the state energy plan it nust
explain why, in witing. On page 14, line 15, changes to the
previ ous workdraft renoved provisions dealing with producing oil
or gas.

4:06: 51 PM

CO CHAI R M LLETT asked whet her "direct owner ship of
transportation and storage facilities" remained in the bill.
4:07: 04 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST advised page 14, lines 17-18, still include that
| anguage. In further response to Co-Chair MIllett, he said the
definition of a transportation facility is sonmething like a

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 13- March 30, 2010



pi peline that could nove a fuel source, and a storage facility
could be a wvariety of neans to store a fuel source
additionally, there is nothing in the |anguage that would limt

the type of fuel storage. Returning to the CS, tax provisions
begin on page 14, line 22, and the intent of the tax provision
is that the corporation maintains a tax-neutral stance towards
| ocal governnent. Public utilities are exenpt from munici pal

taxes because they are governnental entities, and cooperatives
are exenpt from local property taxes by statute, and pay an
el ectric cooperative tax instead. The corporation is exenpt
from taxes unless it sells electricity at retail; therefore, in
the case of the sale of electricity at wholesale to a
cooperative, the cooperative pays a tax to the state on its
sales that is reinbursed to the |ocal governnment, thus becom ng
a paynent in lieu of taxes.

4:09:42 PM

CO CHAIR EDGMON asked whether severance and royalty taxes are
factored into that provision.

4:10: 05 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST stated that the provision currently applies to
el ectric cooperatives in Al aska and he was unsure how severance
and royalty taxes apply.

4:10: 27 PM

CO-CHAIR EDGVON surmsed this issue nust be addressed in the
future.

4:10: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN referred to page 13, line 23, that
establishes a schedule for review of the |ong-range plan every
five years. He asked whether the intent is to wait for five

years because "they have five years to get all of these plans
out to the public and to the legislature.”

4:11:45 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST opined that is not the intent of the bill; in
fact, the reference is to establish a schedule for review ng the
| ong-range fuel supply plan, and for an up-date at |east once
every five years. He called attention to subsection (a), that
directs the corporation to adopt a plan, and subsection (b),

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -14- March 30, 2010



that schedules the review and update, without a tinmefrane for
when the initial plans are to be provided.

4:13: 02 PM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT assuned the review will be done by the public
and the | egislature.

4:13: 26 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST observed that the review is by the board, and
after the board updates the plan, it is nmade available to the
governor, the legislature, ratepayers, and nenbers, at |[east
every five years.

4:14: 37 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT inquired about other state entities that comne
up for long-range financial managenent plan reviews.

4:14:56 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST pointed out GRETC is a private, not a state,
corporation and the reason for the reports is that one of the
primary purposes of GRETC is to be the vehicle for the utilities
to come to the state for financial assistance.

4:15:40 PM

COCHAIR M LLETT questioned whether the legislature and the
state should fund an organi zati on wi t hout annual reviews.

4:17:07 PM

MR, BJORKQUI ST pointed out the provisions on page 15, |ine 28,
that call for an annual audit to be submtted to the governor
and the |egislature. In addition, page 14, line 27, provides
for the board to publish an annual report on the Internet that
i ncl udes any other information requested by the | egislature.

4:18:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked what type of legislative request
for information is required.

4:19:02 PM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -15- March 30, 2010



MR. BJORKQUI ST opined the request from the |egislature would be
a resol ution.

4:19:30 PM

CO CHAIR EDGMON asked for the intent behind the "long-range
capital inprovenent plan.”

4:19:54 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST expl ained that the |ong-range capital inprovenent
plan | ooks at the activities of the corporation 10 years in the
future. This ties in with the |long-range financial managenent
pl an after decisions are made about what facilities to build.

4:20: 55 PM

CO CHAIR EDGVON observed this is influenced by the six
utilities.

4:21:16 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST agreed, adding that this language is part of the
| egi sl ati on devel oped from the taskforce process. He returned
to page 18, line 20, that determnes rates for electric power,
energy, and services. He said this section takes effect in
2015, and described the process to establish rates and charges,
arbitration, and litigation.

4:22:56 PM
CO-CHAIR M LLETT asked for the reason the RCA would not be

involved in the ratemaking instead of "nediated internally in
the GRETC corporation straight to litigation."

4:23:18 PM

MR BJORKQUI ST assured the comrmittee the details of the
corporation's internal dispute resolution nechanism wll be
provided in its by-laws, because internal disputes can take
pl ace at any tine. Setting of the rates, however, takes place
in 2015, after the RCA is no |onger involved. Page 21, line 3,

begins Sec. 11 that authorizes AEA to contract with GRETC to
operate and nmaintain a power project in order to allow GRETC to
participate in the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project and the
Al aska Intertie. He advised that the balance of the CS is the
effective date provisions and concl uded his sectional analysis.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 16- March 30, 2010



4:25:30 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TUCK referred to the long-range capital
i nprovenent plan and the |ong-range financial managenent plan on
page 13, and asked what projects wll happen in the next five
years that would need rate regul ation by the RCA

4:25:57 PM

MR. BJORKQUI ST explained that the planning function is |ooking
at the next 10 years and nust begin imediately after the
formati on of the corporation. However, there may be immediate
needs for projects that the utilities can devel op nore quickly.

4:27:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated that at |east four nenbers are
needed to <create the corporation. He asked whether the
corporation would continue forward with less than four after it
was est abl i shed.

4:27:56 PM
MR, BJORKQUI ST said yes. The organi zation of the corporation
requi res four menbers but, once the corporation is organized, it

does not lose the ability to exist.

CO CHAIR M LLETT opened the hearing to public testinony.

4:28:23 PM

JANET RElI SER, Board Menber, Chugach Electric Association, Inc.
(Chugach Electric), informed the commttee Chugach Electric is
the largest electric generating entity in the state and she
expressed the board's wunqualified support of HB 182. She
enphasized the amazing process that resul ted in this

legislation; in fact, the utilities have conme together as they
are interested in the ratepayer situation, gas supply, and
el ectricity generation issues, and to take advantage of

economes of scale and to reduce regulatory risk. GRETC
legislation is in line with the REGA study and the IRP, and M.
Rei ser urged support of the bill, and recognized the |ong

process and work of the utilities and the taskforce.

4:32:44 PM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -17- March 30, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked what projects the wutilities may
undertake within the next five years.

4:33:02 PM

M5. REISER said there are opportunities to develop renewable
energy projects, gas storage projects, and conbined gas

generation projects. She also nentioned Southcentral Power
Projects (SPP) and pointed out that big ticket projects can not
be handled by individual wutilities. In further response to

Representative Tuck, she said she was unsure of the GRETC
tinmeline.

4:34: 20 PM

CO CHAI R EDGVON asked whether the state can pursue an in-state
gas pipeline and GRETC concurrently.

4:35:02 PM
M5. RElI SER opi ned GRETC will provide the opportunity for comon
pl anni ng-including for transmssion-with all of the utilities,

and that CGRETC and a gas pipeline project are not nutually
excl usi ve.

4:35:55 PM

COCHAIR M LLETT asked for Chugach Electric's policy on
continuing RCA oversight of GRETC if the five-year sunset were
el i m nat ed.

4:36: 28 PM

M5. REISER said, "My general feeling is ... that is not a stop-
i ssue for Chugach.”

4:36: 55 PM

M5. REISER, in further response to Co-Chair MIllett, said there
has been no discussion at the board | evel about Chugach El ectric
getting into the oil and gas business.

4:37:17 PM

JOE GRIFFITH, GCeneral Manager, Matanuska Electric Association,
Inc., (MEA), informed the commttee HB 182 is a crucial bill for

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 18- March 30, 2010



the Railbelt in order to avoid very difficult tinmes for the
el ectrical industry. He advised this |legislation was needed ten
years ago, and the way to a new gas supply and G&T i nprovenents

is by collective effort. M. Giffith requested that the
conmttee pass the bill in the version submtted by the
gover nor.

4:40: 26 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT asked whether continuing RCA oversight for the
life of the GRETC organi zation was a "game-killer."

4:40: 36 PM

MR GRIFFITH said MEA sees no reason for nultiple layers of
regulation in addition to what already exists; in fact, nore
regul ation adds wunnecessary cost and delay. The five-year

agreenent with the sunset <clause is acceptable and "nakes
sense. "

4:41: 36 PM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT assuned the RCA has no purpose prior to GRETC s
si xth year.

4:41: 56 PM

MR. CGRIFFITH disagreed, and stated there nmay be immediate
projects, such as for transm ssion needs and power plants, that

may begin soon and that are "in the regulated environnent." He
cautioned against devel opnent by the utilities wthout
coordi nation through GRETC In further response to Co-Chair

MIllett, he said MEA would not pull out of the agreenent if the
sunset cl ause on regul ation by the RCA were renoved.

4:43: 02 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT asked whether MEA is interested in GRETC
becom ng an oil and gas conpany.

4:43: 37 PM
MR. GRIFFITH opined the intent was never for GRETC to becone an
oil and gas conmpany, but to have the authority to get the fuels

it needs by inportation, fostering drilling, owing gas in the
ground, or leasing tracts.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -19- March 30, 2010



4:44:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether M. Giffith has testified
before the commttee in another capacity.

4:45:11 PM

MR CGRIFFITH said he was wunsure. He becane MEA's general
manager in July, 2009.

4:45:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked for nore informnation about the
af orenenti oned regul ations referred to by M. Giffith.

[CO-CHAIR M LLETT handed the gavel to Co-Chair Edgnon. ]
4:45:24 PM

MR GRIFFITH identified existing regulation as the Sarbanes-
Oxl ey Act of 2002.

4:45:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN surm sed federal regulation would be by
the U S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the
Sar banes-Oxl ey Act, in lieu of regulation by the RCA

4:47: 03 PM

MR CGRIFFITH clarified that irrespective of state regulation, a
corporation with public debt is under the regulation of the SEC,
and is subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In further response
to Representative Johansen, he said when these regulations
apply, he would recommend to the board of directors that it
explain to the ratepayers the inplications of SEC regul ati ons by
i ssuing applicable reports and following generally acceptable
accounting principles. M. Giffith observed that "there are a
huge nunber of rules that we have to live by, no matter what."

4: 49: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN then asked how the needed short-term

projects fit wthin the process of the |ong-range capital
i nprovenent plan in GRETC. He remarked:

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE - 20- March 30, 2010



Wul d you have to go through this process and get the
GRETC corporation on board, in order to quickly nobve
to those projects, or are they projects that are nore

dear to MEA? |'mjust not sure of the timng ..
4:50: 27 PM
MR. GRIFFITH said his recomendation to the board of directors
would be to conduct the planning processes required: a |long-
range financial plan; a |ong-range capital inprovenent plan; a
budget . Addi tional crucial steps involve public debt and

require rating agencies and busi ness plans. The construction of
these plans is one of the first steps.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether GRETC will help the six
entities cooperate.

MR. GRIFFI TH expressed his belief that GRETC is the only course
of action to undertake. He said, "I can't imagine how we're
going to deal with future requirenents that we face
i ndi vidual ly."

[ CO- CHAI R EDGVON returned the gavel to Co-Chair Mllett.]
4:50: 53 PM

KATI E HURLEY, Board Menber, Matanuska El ectric Association, Inc.
(MEA), stated that this is the first tine the Railbelt utilities
are in agreenment since the construction of the Bradley Lake
Hydroel ectric Project in 1986. She described the current crises
faced by the utilities such as new generation, interties, and
fuel supplies, and opined that GRETC is needed to coordinate the
utilities, the state, and fuel supplies. MEA supports HB 182

and she urged the commttee to consider its passage.

4:52:45 PM

KIT JONES, Board Menber, Matanuska Electric Association, Inc.
(MEA), informed the commttee that the Railbelt nust work
together, and a nmmjority of the ratepayers want to see this
done. She pointed out that MEA al so changed managenent, and she
urged the general manager to comment on the IRP as this report
will give the utilities direction.

4:54: 09 PM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -21- March 30, 2010



LARRY DEvILBISS, Board Menber, Matanuska Electric Association,
Inc. (MEA), said that he is a seven-year nenber of the board.
He stressed that the MEA board is united on this issue, as is
the Railbelt, which represents three-quarters of the popul ation
of the state. He opined the wuncertainty of gas and the
depreciation of infrastructure is a "perfect stornmi that wll
|l ead to gas shortages before 2015. M. DeVilbiss recalled the
nmont hs of work by the taskforce.

4:57:16 PM

COCHAIR MLLETT stated her appreciation of the taskforce
process.

4:58:43 PM

BOB PICKETT, Chairman, Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA),

acknowl edged the work of the taskforce and its cooperation with
AEA. He disclosed that his testinmony is his persona

observation alone, and not the position of the RCA He
announced that an wupcoming RCA public neeting on the GRETC
| egi sl ation was schedul ed for 3/31/10. M. Pickett stated that
the RCA supports the broad goals of the original GRETC
| egi sl ati on such as cooperation, joint planning, and the |ack of
duplication; however, protection of the public interest and
protection of the ratepayers nust be integral to any
| egi sl ati on. Regarding the CS for HB 182, version 26-GH1041\S

Chenowet h/ Bai | ey, 3/24/10, he observed that Sec. 3 is purported
to be an interimform of traditional regulation proposed for the
RCA, but he <cautioned that the |language of Sec. 3 is

dramatically different from traditional rate regulation. I n
fact, the l|anguage nore closely resenbles an exenption than
regul ati on. In traditional rat emeki ng, operating expense
recovery is based on historic cost with known and neasurable
adj ust nment s. For exanple, the rate of return and depreciation
are set to provide funds for system expansion, capital repairs,
and overhaul and replacenent. Furthernore, the resulting rates

nmust be just and reasonabl e. However, the deviations in Sec. 3
are generally these: the operating expense recovery is based on
managemnment representations about future operations; the capita

is accurmulated "as an end in itself, with the anpbunts collected
in any particular period determned Dby an unspecified
relationship to future needs;" some individual cost elenents are
presuned to be just and reasonable w thout guidance as to how

the resulting rates wll be evaluated. M. Pickett said witten
cooments will be provided to the comrmittee after the RCA
nmeeting, but he advised that if Sec. 3 remains in the bill, the

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -22- March 30, 2010



RCA will require strong legislative clarification because this
| anguage "has nothing to do with the traditional ratenmaking
process." Furthernore, there are other policy and technical
guestions that arose during M. Pickett's review of HB 182. He
guestioned the underlying policy assunption throughout the bill
that auditing or corporate governance equals regulation, or that
federal regulation supplants the normal ratemaking process. M.
Pickett said, "Again, keep in mnd |I'm speaking for nyself,
[and] | think nothing could be further from the truth." He
called attention to the present financial crisis, and pointed
out that there was a plethora of external auditors and
regul ation regarding those affected financial institutions, "and
we all saw where this led.”

5:06: 13 PM

MR. PICKETT referred to page 13, lines 28-31, and noted the
corporation plans include the issuance of equity and debt. He
questioned how GRETC will issue equity as it is a not-for-profit

cor poration. Regardi ng Bradl ey Lake, he acknow edged that the
project was a huge success and a benefit to Railbelt wutility
rat epayers, but the success of Bradley Lake is not a nodel for,
or an endorsenment of, all of the provisions of the GRETC
| egi sl ati on. Furthernore, he noted other state projects wth
significantly lower levels of success. M. Pickett concluded
that G&T is the biggest cost for ratepayers and capital
investnment is needed for the Railbelt electrical system |If one
of the goals of CGRETC is to deregulate the electrical utility
system the ratepayers should be well aware of the situation and
be given the opportunity to speak.

5:08: 52 PM

CAI TLIN  H GE NS, Executive Director, Al aska  Conservation
Al liance (Alliance), informed the conmittee the Alliance has 40
menber organi zations representing 38,000 Al askans. She said

the Alliance appreciates the admnistration's work to find
consensus, and the positive first steps taken by the Railbelt
utilities. Furthernore, the Alliance and the Honer Electric
Association, Inc. (HEA) Menbers Forum encourage the |egislators'
consideration of the following testinony so the organizations
may ultimately support the proposed |egislation. Ms. Higgins
agreed that a central wutility that plans and pronotes energy
efficiency could provide the Railbelt with significant econom c
gains, job growth, and needed generation projects. Furthernore,
the Alliance supports including statutory |anguage that requires
the wunified utility to evaluate conservation and renewable

HOUSE ENE COW TTEE - 23- March 30, 2010



energy in the devel opnment of its resource plan. In addition,
the Alliance supports ongoing regulatory and financial oversight
of the proposed unified utility by the RCA;, however, this
oversi ght should not sunset after five years of operation and
Ms. Higgins related several benefits of ongoing RCA regulation

She turned to the subject of governance and public input, and
urged that the board of directors of the new utility increase
citizen participation on the board, or create a separate
citizens' wutility board. She said the Alliance also supports
statutory |anguage that maintains open neeting provisions. V5.
H ggins concluded that in order for the Alliance to support the
legislation, its nenbers encourage the conmttee to consider
addi ng language to HB 182 in order to better address financi al
and regulatory oversight, governance and public input, and
energy efficiency.

[HB 182 was hel d. ]

5:13: 15 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

The House Special Committee on Energy was recessed at 5:13 p.m
to a call of the chair. [ The neeting was reconvened at 5:03

p.m on March 31, 2010, for the purpose of adjournnment, and no
| egi sl ati on was heard. ]

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 24- March 30, 2010



